AGENDA
REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING OF
THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY
OF WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA
Walker County Courthouse Annex lll, 201 S Main Street
LaFayette, Georgia 30728

Date: Thursday, April 11, 2019

Time: 6:00 PM

Call to Order: Commissioner Whitfield will call the meeting to order

Invocation: Given by Commissioner Shannon Whitfield

Pledge: United States Flag

Pledge: Georgia Flag

Minutes: Approval of the minutes from the Public Hearings and Commissioner’s

Meeting on March 28, 2019

New Business:

i Consideration of Purchase Order No. 2019-00000500 for Court
Services for a X-Ray Inspection System for Annex lll

I Consideration of Purchase Order No. 2019-00000668 for Walker
County Building Maintenance for a truck for the landscape crew

1. Consideration of Purchase Order No. 2019-00000669 for Walker
County E911 Center to replace HVAC unit

Iv. Resolution R-008-19 Requesting Sales Tax Information from the
State of Georgia Department of Revenue

V. Resolution R-009-19 to Appoint Patty Hart to the Vision 2030
Advance Team



VL. Agreement to Amend Lease on the Stearns Bank Building in Rock

Spring
VII. Proclamation to Recognize Fire Chief Blake Hodge
VIH. March 2019 Departmental Statistics
Adjournment: The Regular Scheduled Meeting will be adjourned

Open Discussion: The business on the Agenda being completed, Commissioner Whitfield
will open the floor for general discussion. In response to requests from
citizens, speakers are asked to limit their comments to 5 minutes and
keep them on topics related to county business.

Due to a scheduling conflict, there will NOT be a meeting on Thursday, April 25, 2019. There will be a Special
Called Commissioner’s Meeting on Thursday, April 18, 2019 at 6:00 PM.



Walker County Governmental Authority
Office of the Commissioner
101 South Duke Street, P.0. Box 445
LaFayette, GA 30728

706-638-1437
Minutes of the Scheduled Public Hearing
March 28, 2019

l.  Call to order

Commissioner Whitfield called to order the Public Hearing
held at Walker County Courthouse Annex lll, 201 S Main
Street, LaFayette, Georgia at 6:00 PM on March 28, 2019.

Il. Attendees

The following persons were present: Commissioner
Shannon Whitfield, Economic and Community
Development Director Robert Wardlaw, Legal & Policy
Director Matt Williamson, Public Relations Director Joe
Legge, Chief Financial Officer Greg McConnell, Human
Resources Director Sharleen Robinson, Director of Public
Works Carlen Bowers, County Clerk Rebecca Wooden.
Other guests signed in at the meeting as well, please see
the attached sign in sheet.

.  Invocation: Given by Commissioner Shannon Whitfield
IV. Pledge: United States Flag
V. Pledge: Georgia Flag

Vl. Open of Public Hearing:

I Commissioner Whitfield reviewed a request from Garner L. Glenn
requesting a rezone from | to A-1 for property located at 0 Blue
Hole Road at Hwy 193, LaFayette, Georgia 30728. Tax Parcel # O-



Vil.

VIIL.

Adjournment:

Public Comment

1.

.

453-002. He asked if anyone was in attendance that would like to
speak in opposition of this request hearing none, would anyone
like to speak in favor of this request. With no one being present
for this request Commissioner Whitfield moved to the second
item.

Commissioner Whitfield reviewed a request from Jemima and
Thomas Shirley requesting a rezone from R-1 to R-2 for property
located at O Rogers Road, Rossville, Georgia 30741. Tax Map # 0-
173-003. Commissioner Whitfield asked if anyone was present to
speak in opposition of this request, hearing none is there anyone
who would like to speak in favor of this request. With no one
being present for this item Commissioner Whitfield moved to the
third item.

Commissioner Whitfield reviewed a request from Cynthia Pierce
Askew requesting a conditional use variance for property located
at 253, Pierce Road Rock Spring, Georgia 30739. Tax Map # 0-344-
006. He asked if anyone was present in the audience who would
like to speak in opposition of this request, hearing none is there
anyone who would like to speak in favor of this request. With no
one being present Commissioner Whitfield adjourned.

The Public Hearing was adjourned at 6:04

{Audio Recording of Public Hearing and comments are on file in
Commissioner’s Office — 19-03-28}

IX. Commissioner Comments

{Audio Recording of Commissioner’s Hearing comments are on file
in Commissioner’s Office — 19-03-28}



Minutes approved by:

Shannon K. Whitfield Date
Sole Commissioner
Walker County Georgia

Minutes prepared by: Walker County Clerk, Rebecca Wooden



I. Callto order

Il. Attendees

Walker County Governmental Authority

Office of the Commissioner
101 South Duke Street, P.0O. Box 445
LaFayette, GA 30728
706-638-1437

Minutes of the Scheduled Public Hearing

March 28, 2019

Commissioner Whitfield called to order the Public Hearing
held at Walker County Courthouse Annex Ill, 201 S Main
Street, LaFayette, Georgia at 6:04 PM on March 28, 2019.

The following persons were present: Commissioner
Shannon Whitfield, Economic and Community
Development Director Robert Wardlaw, Legal & Policy
Director Matt Williamson, Public Relations Director Joe
Legge, Carlen Bowers Director of Public Works, Human
Resources Director Sharleen Robinson, Chief Financial
Officer Greg McConnell, Landfill Manager Paine Gily, and
County Clerk Rebecca Wooden. Other guests signed in at
the meeting as well, please see the attached sign in sheet.

ll.  Invocation and Pledge:

The Invocation and both Pledges were given by Commissioner
Shannon at the beginning of the first Public Hearing tonight.

IV.  Open of Public Hearing:

Commissioner Whitfield reviewed Ordinance 0-03-19 implements
Title 48, Chapter 13, Article 3, Section 51 of the Official Code of
Georgia placing an excise tax on rooms, lodging and
accommodations. He asked if anyone had any questions or
comments to please come forward and state their name. Kristi
Bubrig came forward and asked to consider doing a percentage of
tax at this point. Commissioner Whitfield stated that
modifications would begin on October 1, 2019 to begin at 5% for



the first year and after the first year October 1, 2020 it would go
up to 8%. John Affman came forward to thank Commissioner
Whitfield and staff for meeting several hours and considering
these modifications. Mr. Affman wanted to recommend revisiting
and reviewing how the implementation is working because once it
is implemented it is very difficult to go back. Karen Dupree stated
that she wanted to second the revisiting. Gary Williams came
forward and stated that he doesn’t foresee the tax ever coming
off. He is taxed out and it shouldn’t be put on the citizens. Tori
Phillips, owner of Georgia Book Company stated that Walker
County has businesses that are flourishing. She asked where that
money is going. She stated that Walker County isn’t like everyone
else wants to be different than the other counties and that is
what brings some of the business to Walker County.
Commissioner Whitfield explained that most goes to the
promotion of tourism, it goes thru and managed by the Chamber
of Commerce because state law requires for it to go thru third
party and that the smallest amount actually goes back into the
General Fund and the remainder goes to reinvest back into the
community for tourism. They are earmarked as designated funds
that will be audited and tracked. Melissa Tinney wanted to thank
Commissioner Whitfield for his time and appreciates the mercy he
has shown but the Hotel/Motel tax is greedy. She isn’t looking
forward to charging this tax to her customers. Walker County
does rock but the small business regulations and taxes that are
being addressed worry her. People want to be here because it is a
great place. Tom McCallie stated that he is in favor of this tax
because it gives the County more money. If people want to visit or
see items they will purchase. He wants the county to look good
for the people. The Luxury Hotel on the mountain will bring
people here; the caliber of people will spend money. Karen
Dupree asked about the funding for Walker Rocks. Commissioner
Whitfield explained there were zero dollars invested toward
Walker Rocks. Robert Wardlaw and Joe Legge and several
members of the Chamber of Commerce have worked on this. The
Chamber of Commerce has put some dollars into Walker Rocks
but Walker County Government has put zero dollars into it.
Robert Wardlaw discussed the stickers, T-shirts and cozies have
paid for itself by the exposure and prestige the award brings by
the attention to the county. As people travel they will come and
spend money in our county and get this message out. Money
being spent on Walker Rocks is not pulled from the operating
account or through your property taxes.



1.

Commissioner Whitfield asked if anyone had any questions or
comments on Ordinance 0-04-19 which adds Chapter 14 to the
County Code of Ordinances establishing the “Walker County
Business Code.” Tori Phillips was first and wanted to explain that
as everyone knows she is against taxes and is not in favor of
business license. She has been in business for eighteen years and
police shouldn’t come to her location asking to look at her
records. She asked that Commissioner Whitfield step back and
look at this again before putting it into place. Gary Williams
stated that the business document 14-39 from the old business
has been struck from the ordinance states that each person and
location pays occupation tax for both locations. When a person
conducts business at more than one fixed location, each location
or place shall be considered a separate business for the purpose
of an occupational tax. That has been struck. it has been taken out
so if there are two locations, one on Lookout Mountain the other
in Catlett or Rock Spring, would the person have to pay
occupational tax on each location, is this correct? Commissioner
Whitfield asked if it was 14-39 and Mr. Williams replied yes but it
was the old draft and has been removed. Matt Williamson replied
that the provision has been removed and his answer would be no.
Mr. Williams explained that he is just asking because going back
to Section 14-36, Occupation tax levied restrictions, (1) No
business or practitioner shall be required to pay more than one
occupation tax for each of its locations. That means if someone
has more than one location depending on the number of
employees will pay for each location. Mr. Williamson answered
that it is interpretation. Mr. Williams explained that is what the
document states. Mr. Williamson answered no; the provision that
stated that you would be charged has been taken out. Mr.
Williams asked because it states each. Mr. Williamson explained
that is prohibited language. That means we are not allowed to
charge you more than one business tax for each location that you
do business. Mr. Williams asked for it to be changed and asked
Commissioner Whitfield to table this document. Mr. Williamson
explained Commissioner Whitfield could change the verbiage in
the document right now; there is no need to table it. Mr.
Williams agreed. Lisa Mullinix wanted to ask if a person applying
for business license and it was denied, is there an appeal option?
Commissioner Whitfield explained the person applying is
welcomed to come in and can always go through the appeal
process which is through Magistrate. Anna Carpenter asked what
are the IRS standards for Direct Sales Companies referring back to
the ordinance specific with the IRS regulation? Mr. Williamson



V.

Adjournment:

Public Comment

stated that what they didn’t want to happen with this was to take
the fun out of citizen’s hobbies. It goes back to the specific IRS
factors listed. He doesn’t want to provide bad advice to citizens
for different situations. Karen Dupree asked Commissioner
Whitfield if he would be willing to change the wording on Section
14-36 and Section 14-38 because the verbiage could be
misconstrued. Rufus Mullinix asked what is this going to cost the
county. The Assessor’s office can’t keep up now so is the county
going to make money or create more expense? Commissioner
Whitfield explained that there is no database within Walker
County Government that identifies businesses and once we have
an Occupation Tax we will be able to do a resolution and get a
database from the Department of Revenue that is collecting Sales
Tax. There isn’t a cost to receive this information, only the cost of
the mailers we send out. This information from the State of
Georgia will be on businesses that are collecting and reporting
correct information on active tax filings being done. They will not
share on the amount but only the businesses name and address.
This will give us time to send letters explaining this change to
business owners. We would begin issuing license with any new
businesses July 1, 2019, existing businesses would be January 1,
2020. Mr. Mullinix asked if there would be any business license
parameters. Commissioner Whitfield explained that Walker
County doesn’t justify the type of license. Mr. Mullinix wished
everyone good luck. Tori Phillips asked if anyone could be on the
Walker Rocks advertising. Commissioner Whitfield answered yes.
Lisa Mullinix asked Commissioner Whitfield if he would be
posting the financial information more often on the website.
Commissioner Whitfield answered yes. In the past all of the
information regarding was handled by open records request that
is how he received his first two copies. Joe has done a wonderful
job getting these audits posted on the website. | believe they go
back about twenty years and are all posted on the website now.
We are currently trying to get the past fiscal year of the audit
finalized now and we will be getting this posted as well. The goal
would be to get the first quarter up and posted.

The second Public Hearing was adjourned at 6:56 PM and guests
were given a brief intermission.



{Audio Recording of Public Hearing and comments are on file in
Commissioner’s
Office — 19-03-28}

IX. Commissioner Comments

{Audio Recording of Commissioner’s Hearing comments are on file
in Commissioner’s Office — 19-03-28}

Minutes approved by:

Shannon K. Whitfield Date
Sole Commissioner
Walker County Georgia

Minutes prepared by: Walker County Clerk, Rebecca Wooden



Sign In Sheet

Public Hearings

March 28, 2019

6:00 PM

e Address

Telephone

él—’“"-ﬁé Mﬂ/tgf)@ “’Mi&){

)

RS e

FCPEEEN

Tremaas N

GO

|
= u@m

i / ;"’5
Y gM

= N(,') A )
,; P /,a.;z’”z*;; e




Walker County Governmental Authority
Office of the Commissioner
101 South Duke Street, P.0O. Box 445
LaFayette, GA 30728
706-638-1437

Minutes of the Regular Scheduled Commissioner’s

Meeting
March 28, 2019

I Call to order

Il. Attendees

Commissioner Whitfield called to order the Regular Scheduled
Meeting of the Walker County Government. This meeting was
held at Walker County Courthouse Annex lll, 201 S Main Street,
LaFayette, Georgia at 7:01 PM on March 28, 2019

The following persons were present: Commissioner Shannon
Whitfield, Economic and Community Development Director
Robert Wardlaw, Legal and Policy Director Matt Williamson,
Public Relations Director Joe Legge, Chief Financial Officer Greg
McConnell, Human Resource Director Sharleen Robinson, Landfill
Manager Paine Gily, County Clerk Rebecca Wooden. Other guests
signed in at the meeting as well, please see the attached sign in
sheet.

I.  Invocation and Pledge:

The Invocation and both Pledges were given by Commissioner Shannon
at the beginning of the first Public Hearing tonight.

HI. Open of the Regular Scheduled Meeting

L

Commissioner Whitfield approved the request from Garner L.
Glenn requesting a rezone from | to A-1 for property located at 0
Blue Hole Road at Hwy 193 LaFayette, Georgia 30728. Tax Parcel #
0-453-002 002



A5

VIl

Adjournment

Commissioner Whitfield tabled the request from Jemima and
Thomas Shirley requesting a rezone from R-1 to R-2 for property
located at 0 Rogers Road, Rossville Georgia 30741. Tax Map # O-
173-003 002

Commissioner Whitfield approved the request from Cynthia
Pierce Askew requests a conditional use variance for property
located at 253 Pierce Road Rock Spring, Georgia 30739. Tax Map
# 0-344-006 002

Commissioner Whitfield thanked everyone for their input and
explained that he is moving forward and approving Ordinance O-
03-19 implements Title 48, Chapter 13, Article 3, Section 51 of the
Official Code of Georgia placing an excise tax on rooms, lodging
and accommodations.

Commissioner Whitfield discussed Ordinance 0-04-19 that adds
Chapter 14 to the County Code of Ordinances establishing the
“Walker County Business Code.” The dates for new businesses
would be July 1, 2019 and existing business would start January 1,
2020. Commissioner Whitfield added after consulting with
Attorney Matt Williamson a modification this will be made
changing the verbiage to “for each line of business.”

Commissioner Whitfield read and approved Resolution R-006-19, A
Resolution of the Sole Commissioner of Walker County to Award a
Road Paving Contract for Project 2019-1. With all documentation
provided this bid was awarded to Talley Construction. This will
keep us moving forward with paving in Walker County.

Commissioner Whitfield read and approved Resolution R-007-19,
A Resolution of the Sole Commissioner of Walker County Pursuant
to the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 Authorizing Adoption of the
Walker County Mitigation Plan. This plan keeps Walker County
ready for any disaster that could happen.

Commissioner Whitfield adjourned the meeting at 7:17 PM



IV. Public Comment

{Audio Recording of Commissioner’s Meeting comments is on file
in the Commissioner’s Office — 19-03-28}

V. Commissioner Comments

{Audio Recording of Commissioner’s Meeting comments is on file
in the Commissioner’s Office — 19-03-28}

Minutes approved by:

Shannon K. Whitfield Date
Sole Commissioner
Walker County Georgia

Minutes prepared by: Walker County Clerk, Rebecca Wooden



Sign In Sheet

Regular Scheduled Commissioner’s Meeting

March 28, 2019

6:00 PM

Address Telephone

. o 3";_ .
o S T e AN C T

.~ e owl Tt ~ ; ~ 1 s
y Vyobn o X PR U 2 PO PR N
Vooledze 1 KeWewdd oo hoac

Loy Ty \ \Jv s

-3

>b‘\pf é;(){ L/-L'\ﬁo/:/% JO0E.DTY ,f’q/v

;;;;; ‘:"V,, g ) 1
- v H o
/ P L n e o7 //
L 7 » N2 U B CAS N >,
N '/1—"@ - /’/ U A AN O L N e /\ T
- ) . T E

1 Kl e ¥y e s"‘;’
C/g) SBiD O 1__,,) i

VioaEsiene (e




¢ WALKER COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE ~ w
£ 105 S DUKE ST. — P.O.BOX767

3 LA FAYETTE, GA 30728 : LA FAYETTE, GA 30728
o o

VENDOR 63817 POINT SECURITY INC

WALKER COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE

ORDER

REPRINT PURCHASE

NO. 2019-00000500

DATE 04/08/2019

PAGE 1 OF 1

APPROVED BY

DELIVER BY
© POINT SECURITY INC SHIP VIA
CZD 5815 NC HWY 8 SOUTH FREIGHT TERMS
S LEXINGTON, NC 27292-6325 ORIGINATOR Miller, Murlyne
> RESOLUTION #
a PAYMENT TERMS
QUANTITY (UM [DESCRIPTION _ UNITCOST|  TOTAL COST
1.0000|EA Capital - Other Equipment - X Ray Inspection System (ANNEX 3) $23,850.0000 $23,850.00
TOTAL DUE $23,850.00

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS




WALKER CO COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE

LA FAYETTE, GA 30728

wn
% 101 S DUKE ST
-

)

PO BOX 445

oL g

VENDOR 55673 LEE SMITH INC

LA FAYETTE, GA 30728

ORDER

WALKER CO COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE REPRINT PURCHASE

NO. 2019-00000668

DATE 04/08/2019

PAGE 1 OF 1

APPROVED BY

DELIVER BY
O LEE SMITH INC SHIP VIA
g 2600 8TH AVE FREIGHT TERMS
-1 CHATTANOOGA, TN 37407 ORIGINATOR Whitfield, Shannon
> RESOLUTION #
9 PAYMENT TERMS
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT COST TOTAL COST
1.0000 [EA Capital - Vehicles - 2013 Isuzu NPR Landscape Truck $20,000.0000 $20,000.00
L
TOTAL DUE $20,000.00

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS




Lee-Smith, Inc.
BUYER'S ORDER

INVOICE TO:

Company WALKER COUNTY GOVERNMENT

Contact SHANNON WHITFIELD

END USER:

{This name must be on factory warranty and delivery forms.)

Title COMMIISIONER

Salesperson Rodney Stephens

Address 101 SOUTH DUKE STREET, PO BOX 445 PO # ] NEW USED
City  LaFayette ST Ga Zip 30728 FOB Chattanooga

Phone  (706)638-1437 Fax Mileage 232,213

Email: commisioner@walkerga.us

Quantity 1 Description/VIN 54DC4W1B9DS802475, 2013 ISUZU NPR LANDSCAPE TRUCK Model NPRHD

SPECIFICATIONS: See Attachment

SELLING PRICE (EACH)

$20,000

FEDERAL EXCISETAX

SUBTOTAL (EACH)

EXTENDED SERVICE CONTRACT(S)

EXTENDED SERVICE CONTRACTS:
Describe Policy{s) Policy #

MISC.

SUBTOTAL (EACH)

TRADE IN ALLOWANCE

NET AFTER TRADE IN (EACH)

Year Make Model

TRADE  VIN

Mileage

STATETAX

COUNTY TAX

CITYTAX

[} FORRESALE TAX #

[ ICC EXEMPTION MCH#

TENNESSEE TIRE TAX

GEORGIA TAVT

TITLE AND/ORTAG

SUBTOTAL (EACH)

Lienholder:

SUBTOTAL (ALL)

INVOICETOTAL

$20,000

PAYOFF ON TRADE IN

NON REFUNDABLE DEPOSIT

FACTORY REBATE TO CUSTOMER

SUBTOTAL (ALL)

$20,000

Payment Terms:

CHECK

NOTES/COMMENTS

V8 6.0 GAS ENGINE, AUTOMATIC TRANSMISSION,FRESH OiL CHANGE AND TIRE BALANCE Initials (signature
NEW 18 FOOT LANDSCAPE BED BUILT BY WOMACK TRUCK BODY on following page)







10054 N HWY 27

OL dIHS

WALKER COUNTY E 911

ROCK SPRING, GA 30739

VENDOR 55559 JAKE MARSHALL SERVICE INC

P O BOX 4324

1OVINOD

JAKE MARSHALL SERVICE INC
CHATTANOOGA, TN 37405

QUANTITV m DESCRIPTION

1.0000 |E

Capital - Other Equipment - 6 TON HVAC unit replacement

W WALKER COUNTY E911 REPRINT PURCHASE
rl': PO BOX 445 ORDER

— LAFAYETTE, GA 30728 NO. 2019-00000669
@]

DATE 04/08/2019

DELIVER BY

SHIP VIA

FREIGHT TERMS

ORIGINATOR Whitfield, Shannon
RESOLUTION #

PAYMENT TERMS

UNIT COST TOTAL COST
$21,756.0000 $21,756.00

PAGE 1 OF 1

APPROVED BY

TOTAL DUE $21,756.00

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS




RESOLUTION R-008-19

RESOLUTION REQUESTING SALES TAX INFORMATION FROM THE GEORGIA
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE PURSUANT TO O.C.G.A. $ 48-2-15(d.1) AND NAMING

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

A DESIGNATED OFFICER FOR ALL RELATED PURPOSES

Walker County is a political subdivision duly created and validly existing under
the laws of the State of Georgia; and

the Sole Commissioner is the County governing authority for Walker County,
Georgia; and

0.C.G.A. § 48-2-15, as amended in 2018, authorizes the Commissioner of the
Georgia Department of Revenue (hereinafter the "DOR Commissioner”) to
provide certain confidential sales tax information to the "designated finance
officer or taxing official" of counties and other local governments; and

more specifically, 0.C.G.A. $ 48-2-15(d.1) authorizes the DOR Commissioner to
provide to a local government's designated officer, upon request, certain
information relating to vendors that have submitted sales tax reports within the
period of time set forth in that request; and

0.C.G.A. § 48-2-15(d.1) further allows the local government's designated officer
to request that the DOR Commissioner validate, from time to time, the political
subdivision to which sales taxes are being remitted by taxpayers with a business
location within that local government's boundaries; and

Walker County desires to obtain the sales tax information described in the above
Georgia Code Section.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Sole Commissioner of Walker County, as

follows:

1. The Sole Commissioner hereby designates the following finance or tax official as Walker
County's Designated Officer for all purposes described in O.C.G.A. § 48-2-15(d.1): Greg
McConnell, CFO, 101 South Duke Street, LaFayette, Georgia 30728; 706-638-1783;
g.mcconnell@walkerga.us

2. The Sole Commissioner hereby requests the DOR Commissioner (or his/her designee)
furnish to the above-named Designated Officer all vendor sales tax information described



in 0.C.G.A. § 48-2-15(d.1)(1) for Walker County for the following time period: 07/01/18
-03/31/19

3. In accordance with O.C.G.A. § 48-2-15(d.1)(2)(B) and following receipt of the
information described in Paragraph 2, above, the Designated Officer is hereby authorized
to request validation by the DOR Commissioner of the political subdivision to which one
or more vendors/taxpayers with a business location in Walker County have remitted sales
taxes for the designated period, with such validation request to contain the business name
and location address of each such vendor/taxpayer and such other information as may
assist the DOR Commissioner in responding to such validation request;

4. The Designated Officer shall use such information only in the discharge of his/her duties
and shall maintain the confidentiality of such information as required by O.C.G.A. §
48-2-15(d.1); and

5. The Sole Commissioner and Board of Commissioners shall comply with all
confidentiality requirements of O.C.G.A. § 48-2-15(d.1), including, but not limited to, the
requirements that 1) such information may only be discussed by members of the Board of
Commissioners in executive session and 2) members of the Board of Commissioners
shall recuse themselves from such executive session discussions in the event of a conflict
of interest as described in the above Georgia Code Section.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall become effective upon its approval
by the Sole Commissioner, and the official named above shall remain Walker
County's Designated Officer for all purposes under O.C.G.A. $ 48-2-15(d.1) until
further action of the governing authority of Walker County.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Walker County Clerk is hereby directed to provide a
certified copy of this Resolution to the Georgia Department of Revenue via email
(public.disclosure@dor.ga.gov) or otherwise transmit a copy of this Resolution as

may be directed by the Georgia Department of Revenue.

SO RESOLVED this 11th day of April 2019.

ATTEST: WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA

REBECCA WOODEN SHANNON K. WHITFIELD
County Clerk Sole Commissioner



CERTIFICATION

I do hereby certify that the attached Resolution is a true and correct copy of Resolution
R-16-19 duly adopted by the governing authority of Walker County on the date so stated in said
Resolution.

I further certify that I am the Clerk and that said Resolution has been duly entered in the
official records of Walker County, Georgia, the original of such Resolution appears of public
record in the Resolution Book of the Sole Commissioner, which is in my custody and control.

In witness thereof, 1 have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the Clerk for
Walker County Sole Commissioner to be affixed on this 11th day of April, 2019.

REBECCA WOODEN
County Clerk
Walker County, Georgia



RESOLUTION R-009-19

A RESOLUTION OF THE SOLE COMMISSIONER OF WALKER COUNTY
TO APPOINT A MEMBER TO THE VISION 2030 ADVANCE TEAM

WHEREAS, Resolution R-003-19 created the Vision 2030 Advance Team; and

WHEREAS, the Vision 2030 Advance Team investigates, researches, discusses and deliberate
actions necessary for purposes of making recommendations to the governing authority of Walker County
concerning the issues described in the Resolution; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE 1T RESOLVED by the Sole Commissioner of Walker County,
Georgia, Patty Hart is hereby appointed to the “Vision 2030 Advance Team”; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Sole Commissioner expresses gratitude for the
willingness of Mrs. Hart to serve upon this team and thanks her on behalf of the citizens of Walker

County.

SO RESOLVED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of April, 2019.

ATTEST: WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA

REBECCA WOODEN, County Clerk SHANNON K. WHITFIELD, Sole Commissioner



FIRST AMENDMENT TO
FACILITIES LEASE AND OPTION AGREEMENT

This First Amendment to Facilities Lease and Option Agreement (the “Amendment”) is
entered into on , 2019 (the “Effective Date”) by and between Stearns Bank N.A. (the
“Lessor”) and Walker County, Georgia (the “Lessee”).

RECITALS

A. Lessee has a leasehold interest under a certain Facilities Lease and Option
Agreement dated July 2, 2015 (the “Lease”), covering the Premises, Buildings, and Equipment
described in the Lease (collectively, the “Facilities™).

B. The Lease provides Lessee the option to purchase from Lessor all (but not part) of
the Facilities upon payment by Lessee to Lessor of certain amounts before termination of the Lease
Term (the “Purchase Option™).

C. The Lease Term terminated without Lessee exercising the Purchase Option.
D. Lessor and Lessee have agreed to amend the Lease.
AGREEMENT

Lessor and Lessee, for good and valuable consideration as set forth herein, agree as
follows:

1. The Lease Term is extended through November 1, 2019, subject to Lessee’s
satisfaction of all the following conditions:

a. Lessee shall pay to Lessor the amount of three hundred ninety thousand
dollars and 00/100 cents ($390,000.00), as a nonrefundable down payment toward its
exercise of the Purchase Option, not more than fifteen (15) days following the Effective
Date of this Amendment.

b. Lessee shall pay to Lessor a renewal fee in the amount of nineteen thousand
five hundred dollars and 00/100 cents ($19,500.00), not more than fifteen (15) days
following the Effective Date of this Amendment.

c. Lessee shall pay to Lessor the amount of actual attorneys’ fees incurred by
Lessor in connection with the preparation of this Amendment not more than fifteen (15)
days following the Effective Date of this Amendment, which actual amount Lessor shall
confirm to Lessee in writing as soon as practicable following the Effective Date of this
Amendment.

2. Provided that Lessee satisfies all of the conditions stated above in paragraph 1 of
this Amendment, Lessee shall not owe Lessor, nor incur any obligation to pay Lessor, Rental



Payments for the period beginning on the Effective Date and ending upon termination of the Lease
Term as extended by this Amendment.

3. Provided that Lessee satisfies all of the conditions stated above in paragraph 1 of
this Amendment, Lessee may exercise the Purchase Option by paying to Lessor the amount of two
hundred eighty-two thousand eight hundred ninety-nine dollars and 79/100 ($282,899.79) not later
than November 1, 2019.

4. This Amendment is executed for the purpose of modifying the Lease.

5. This Amendment is incorporated into and made part of the Lease. All words and
phrases defined in the Lease shall, when used in this Amendment, have the same meanings
ascribed to them in the Lease unless the context clearly requires a different meaning or unless a
different definition is provided in this Amendment. Lessor and Lessee affirm that the Lease
remains in full force and effect in all its terms and conditions, as amended by this Amendment.

[Remainder of Page is Left Blank Intentionally]

UACLEAN Walker County First Amendment to Lease Opt SINv3.DOCX



SIGNATURES AND SEALS

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor has executed this Amendment in its corporate name
by its duly authorized officer, and Lessee has executed this Amendment in its corporate name with
its official seal hereunto affixed and attest by its duly authorized officials. All of the above occurred

as of the date first written on the heading of this Amendment.

As to Lessor, signed, sealed, LESSOR:
and delivered in the presence of:
STEARNS BANK N.A.
Unofficial Witness
By:
Notary Public Authorized Officer
My Commission Expires:
(NOTARY SEAL)
As to Lessee, signed, sealed, LESSEE:

and delivered in the presence of:

WALKER COUNTY, GEORGIA

Unofficial Witness
By:
Notary Public Commissioner of Walker County
My Commission Expires: (SEAL)
Attest:
(NOTARY SEAL)
Clerk of Walker County

UNCLEAN Watker County First Amendment to Lease Opt SINVI.DOCX



Stearns Bank
Roek g?liNJ
EXHIBIT C

RENTAL PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Lease Amount
After Rental

Payment  Due Date Total Rental Principal Interest Payment Due
Number of Payment Payment Component Component Hag Been Made
1 8/1/2015 $ 5,738.75 $ 2,730.00 $3,008.75 $827,270
2 9/1/2015 5,842.26 2,740.00 3,102.26 824,530
3 10/1/2015 5,841.99 2,750.00 3,091.99 821,780
4 11/1/2015 5,842.68 2,761.00 3,081.68 819,019
5 12/1/2015 5,842.32 2,771.00 3,071.32 816,248
6 1/1/2016 5,842.93 2,782.00 3,060.93 813,466
7 2/1/2016 6,373.50 3,323.00 3,050.50 810,143
8 3/172016 6,373.04 3,335.00 3,038.04 806,808
9 4/1/2016 6,373.53 3,348.00 3,025.53 803,460
10 5/1/2016 6,372.97 3,360.00 3,012.97 800,100
1 6/1/2016 6,373.38 3,373.00 3,000.38 796,727
12 7/1/2016 6,373.73 3,386.00 2,987.73 793,341
13 8/1/2016 6,373.03 3,398.00 2,975.03 789,943
14 9/1/2016 6,373.28 3,411.00 2,962.28 786,532
15 107172016 6,373.50 3,424.00 2,949.50 783,108
16 11/1/2016 6,373.66 3,437.00 2,936.66 779,671
17 T12/1/2016 6,372.77 3,449.00 2,923.77 776,222
18 1/1/2017 6,372.83 3,462.00 2,910.83 772,760
19 21172017 6,372.85 3,475.00 2,897.85 769,285
20 3/1/2017 6,373.82 3,489.00 2,884.82 765,796
21 4/1/2017 6,373,774 3,502.00 2,871.74 762,294
22 5/1/2017 6,373.61 3,515.00 2,858.61 758,779
23 6/1/2017 6,373.42 3,528.00 2,845.42 755,251
24 7/1/2017 6,373.19 3,541.00 2,832.19 751,710
25 8/1/2017 6,373.91 3,555.00 2,818.91 748,155
26 /12017 6,373.58 3,568.00 2,805.58 744,587
27 10/1/2017 6,373.20 3,581.00 2,792.20 741,006
28 11/1/2017 6,372.77 3,594.00 2,778.77 737,412
29 12/1/2017 6,374.30 3,609.00 2,765.30 733,803
30 1/1/2018 6,373.76 3,622.00 2,751.76 730,181
31 2/1/2018 6,373.18 3,635.00 2,738.18 726,546
32 3/1/2018 6,373.55 3,649.00 2,724.55 722,897
33 4/1/2018 6,372.87 3,662.00 2,710.87 719,235
34 5/1/2018 6,374.13 3,677.00 2,697.13 715,558
35 6/1/2018 6,373.35 3,690.00 2,683.35 711,868
3 7/1/2018 6,373.51 3,704.00 2,669.51 708,164
37 8/1/2018 6,373.62 3,718.00 2,655.62 704,446
38 9/1/2018 6,372.68 3,731.00 2,641.68 700,715
39 10/1/2018 6,373.68 3,746.00 2,627.68 696,969
40 11/1/2018 6,373.64 3,760.00 2,613.64 693,209
41 12/1/2018 6,373.53 - 3,774.00 2,599.53 689,435

42 1/12019 692,020.38 a

ATLANTA 5639841.6



| WHEREAS




glep ou 8E6°¥T 166°1T 9179 760°C TLOT sdui, jeog,
910T L10T 810T 610C oI Lrenagay JISuBL JONIBAN
vyep ou Blep ou 86L Y LOLT 0£0°1 061°1 Sa0L10J/3uIyored
9107 L10T 8107 610T PIey Areniqog SHIO AN DHgRg
Blep ou r81°l €6 Fi9 69¢ ¥TT POpPY SI9QLIOSqNS IMDSMON
SrLELl L80°66€ £8T91¢ 8r9°L8 9¢0°0¢ £TS0E SMOIA IONSIA AOS Y DATUNOIOY M
vlep ou F6S L8V o1 £t 6¢ SIS0 N00qa0E,]
viep ou SI9'y 81T £99 6¢1 08¢ POPPY SI9MO[[0,] H00qa0R,]
elep ou €09 605 101 ¢ oF (so11018) suoissardwi] vipajy
9107 L16T 8107 610T Yoaepy Kaenaqay SuouRpY Jqng
¢l cey A 1z S 6 UOIDNIISUOY) DWOL MON A[1wue,] o[3uig
L10T L10T 8107 6107 Aaenaqayg Supuuelg
91 Y4y 806 i 96 Ll payoog] SIYSIN 810,
9102 L10Z 8107 6107 Yaaey Lienaqoy SULIE 9A0]) UIBJUNON]
Bigp ou 0z0°€Tl TI6'TT 0Z8'rT 0v$9 096°L Spuno Ysel |, opisproy
9107 L10T 810C 6107 L BN oY Aaenaqay Ty
vjep ou 1T 97T So¢ vL 681 pajjeIsuf swe]y ayouwsg
Ljep ou rL'y 65€°9 £LIC 8LL 9¢eL OOIAIOG 10] s{[ED) SulpuRl] suf
4323 Rad 0L9°C L6¥F'1 cov LES ADIALDGS 10 s{eD
9107 L10z 8107 6107 YaIe Lienaqay Judungaedaqq sy,
vlep ou 08¥ 6¢ce €l [4 ¥ SOSB) PIsOID)
172 69F°1 LS8 Tl (Vg 0¢ SUOHBIOTA
eep ou Ly vTiS 0zt o6y LTE ot dwoy)
9107 L10T 8107 6107 LRaid A Areniqay JUDUWIDIOJUT] SIPOD)
0€9 9¢y 96¢ 9¢e [ 0 € 0 0 0 poaziueyinzg
B/u e/u 4 17 0 44| 1 1 6 0 UM 01 PaLINIY
101 €1e €6¢ 989 £l 6¥L 61 114! 4! 149 0 panosay
6 F0€ L¥l LIT Fe 8¢l (44 4 81 ¥ paidopy
001 H0ET] 6L6 879°1 €C 9LI'L Ly 0T¢ £€C 88 4! ABRI]
s18) sgo(q sje)) sdoQq o) sso(q sje)) sdoq s38) sdoq s1e) ssoq
9107 L10T 8107 6107 Ateniqag

6T0Z Yol - Sosiels jejuawipiedaq Aluno) Jaxjem

YoIe

93Oy ey



